
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The May 19, 2022 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library 
District will be held will be held on Thursday May 19, 2022 at 6:00 pm at Steele Memorial 
Library and by ZOOM (link to be sent out). The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you 
are unable to attend, please inform Ms. Dworkin (607-398-2021), Mrs. Mellott (733-8607), or 
Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2022-25)  
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2022-26)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2022-27)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report (Dworkin) 

Consent Item: Approval of Tax Cap Override 
Whereas, the adoption of the 2023 budget for the Chemung County Library District may require a 

tax levy increase that exceeds the tax cap imposed by state law as outlined in 
GeneralMunicipalLawSection3‐c adopted in 2011;and  

Whereas, General Municipal Law Section 3‐c expressly permits the library board to override the 
tax levy limit by a resolution approved by a vote of sixty percent of qualified board members; 
now therefore be it  

Resolved, that the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District voted and approved 
to exceed the tax levy limit for 2023 by at least the sixty percent of the board of trustees as 
required by state law on May 20, 2022. 

7.  Director’s Report 
Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the personnel actions as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of taransfer of Denton Donation to Foundation 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve acceptance of donations as submitted. 

8.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Dworkin)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2022-28) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2022-29)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2022-30) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Appenzellar)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
 f) Advocacy Committee  
9. Executive Session 
10.  Old business     

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


11.  New business 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  



(Minutes of the April 21, 2022 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of 

Trustees. Document #2022-25) 

  
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by President Rachel Dworkin. Present in person:  
and Ms. Phyllis Rogan, and Ms. Jessica Roberts.  Present via Zoom were Mr. Kevin Hansen, 
Mr. Mark Padgett, Ms. Martha Smith, Ms. Pat Silvernail, Ms. Crystal Gull-Buzzetti, Mr. 
Karl Schwesinger, Ms. Pamela Larnard, Ms. Lee Saginario, Ms. Penny Appenzellar, Mr. 
Jack Schamel, and Ms. Bonnie Chollet.  Excused:  Ms. Muriel Friend.  Also present were 
Holly Melott and Ron Shaw on behalf of the Library District’s Administration. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the March 17, 2022 meeting (Document #2022-13) were 
presented for board review. Mr. Jack Schamel moved that the March Board minutes be 
approved as presented, seconded by Ms. Roberts. VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.   
 
Financial Report. The March 2022 Financial Report (Document #2022-14) was presented 
for board review.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. Padgett, to approve the February 
Financial Report as presented. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2022-15) Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. 
Larnard, that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 04/21/2022 for the 
General Fund - $6,052.61.   VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Ms. Kathy Stickler from Mengel, Metzger, and Barr reviewed the 2021 CCLD audit.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:   Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. Padgett, that the 2021 audit 
be received as presented.   VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Roberts, that the January 
Personnel Actions be approved as amended. Emily Johns was hired as a page at 
Horseheads, Clayton Sampsell was hired as a page at Steele. VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.   
 
Correspondence. 
 
President’s Report.  Ms. Dworkin received a letter from the Horseheads Foundation 
requesting that the newly constructed pavilion at the Horseheads Library be named in 
memory of Matty Princiotto.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Chollet moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel, that the pavilion at 
Horseheads be named in memory of Mr. Matty Princiotto.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.   
 
 
Director’s Report: 

 Mr. Shaw received an email from a patron commending librarian, Connie Ogilvie for 
her exemplary service.   

 Ms. Peggy Buzako, Steele patron, was the winner of the National Library Week 
drawing.   

 West Elmira will be short staffed during the month of May.  One full time employee 
will be out due to a medical procedure, one part time employee will be on a pre-
approved extended leave.  No additional time off will be granted. 

 
 



 An instructor was belligerent with staff at Steele concerning the use of the 
auditorium.  Guidelines stating responsibilities of both staff and those who utilize the 
room are stated and will continue to be up held.  Staff will strive to foster better 
communication with the instructor in the future. 

 Mr. Shaw attended a webinar entitle “Fighting Censorship”.  The presentation 
reiterated the importance of having established policies in place.   

 Local school librarians are promoting use of CCLD materials, students are able to 
access library resources with provided log in credentials. 

 On Tuesday, May 10th an autism awareness webinar will be made available.  This 
resource will be funded by grant monies acquired by librarian, Doris Jean Metzger.  
Gratitude was expressed to Ms. Metzger for her efforts in providing this valuable 
resource. Viewing will be mandatory for all staff.  

 Mr. Shaw was contacted by Tomkins County Library to discuss automatic 
promotions from Librarian I to Librarian II.  These are Civil Service positions and 
that practice is not used by CCLD. 

 Ms. Kelly Brown and Ms. Michelle Erickson, full time library clerks, will be 
participating in the Horseheads Family Resource Center Fair on June 4th at the Arnot 
Mall.   

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2022-22).  Correction:  Martha Smith in attendance.  

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board. (Document #2022-23)  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2022-24).  Ms. Pam Larnard 
updated the board on behalf of the Horseheads Foundation meeting which was held on April 
20th.  Horseheads Friends will be purchasing furniture to be used in the pavilion.  A check 
from Liberty Mutual Insurance will be sent in the amount of $2,925.  Mr. Shaw received an 
estimate in the amount of $2,925 from Elmira Structure to repair the damage done to the 
exterior of Steele during a recent vehicular accident.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Mr. Schwesinger moved, seconded by Ms. Gullo-Buzzetti, that Mr. 
Shaw be authorized to contact Elmira Structure and begin repair on the exterior 
damage that was incurred at Steele during a recent vehicular accident.  VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved.   
  
Personnel Committee.   Director evaluations have been sent to trustees via email.  Contact 
Ms. Appenzellar if you did not receive one.  Please complete and return by early May so that 
they may be compiled and review with Mr. Shaw prior to the May board meeting. 
 
Election & Continuity Committee.   
 
Advocacy Committee.   
 
Old Business.    

New Business.   

Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel, to adjourn.  VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved.   

The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, May 19, 2022, at 6:00pm 
online via Zoom and in the auditorium of the Steele Memorial Library. 











Document #2022-28  
 
Report of the May 4, 2022 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee were Rachel 
Dworkin, Jack Schamel, Phyllis Rogan, and Martha Smith.  Board members attending were Lee 
Saginario, Pat Silvernail, Bonnie Chollet, Penny Appenzellar, Mark Padgett, Kevin Hansen, and Crystal 
Gullo-Buzzetti, Ronald Shaw and Holly Melott, CCLD management, were also present.    
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Melott submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 05/04/22 in the amount of $48,324.71 
for the General Fund and $1,774.89 for the Central Library District and Central Book Aid Fund.  Ms. 
Chollet moved, seconded by Ms. Smith, to approve payment of the General and Central Library 
District and Central Book Aid Fund bills as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    
 
Mr. Shaw reported on the following: 

  The Steele Foundation has designated $25,000 to be used at the West Elmira Library.  Proposals 
are being evaluated. 

 CCLD Friends will be holding their annual meeting at Steele on June 6.  It is their hope and 
intention to offer the fall sessions of “Books Sandwiched In” both in person and via Zoom. 

 Circulation statistics continue to climb as the year progresses. 
 A portion of in house programming has resumed, format is at the discretion of the instructor. 
 Summer Reading Club activities and resources are being finalized for all branches. 
 Resolutions will be sought at the May board meeting for the following:  

1. Move the Denton trust funds to the Steele Foundation to achieve  maximum 
investment return 

2. To override the property tax cap  
    
Ms. Dworkin reminded members to complete the annual director evaluation. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:15 pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District will be held on Wednesday, June 1, 2022 at 6 pm via Zoom. 



Document #2022-29 
 
Report of the May 11, 2022 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting via Zoom: Ms. Jessica Roberts, Ms. Rachel Dworkin, and Ms. Crystal 
Gullo-Buzzetti. Also in attendance Holly Melott and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The 
meeting opened at 8:45 a.m. 
 
Ms. Melott presented the April 30, 2022 Financial Report to the Committee. The report will be 
forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Melott presented the Unpaid Bill List dated May 19, 2022 for the General Fund - $8,716.25, 
for the CBA Fund - $138.74; Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its 
consideration.  
 
Mr. Shaw stated that the 2023 budget is being prepared, the first draft will be presented to the 
committee at the June meeting.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:50am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, June 8, 2022 at 8:45 a.m. via Zoom. 
   
 
 



Document #2022-30 
 
 
Report of the May 4, 2022 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30 pm. Present were Ms. Martha Smith, Ms. Lee Saginario, and Ms. 
Rachel Dworkin.  Also attending were Mr. Ron Shaw and Ms. Holly Melott, CCLD 
Management. 
 
The committee discussed the following: 

 Elmira Structures has been contracted to repair the damage done to the exterior of Steele.  
They are locating compatible bricks, the project will commence once a match has been 
secured. 

 Tinker Lab staff have requested the placement of a ventilation system.  O’Connor 
Plumbing and Heating has been contacted for an estimate.  Bob Butcher’s services may 
be needed to oversee the project. 

 Mr. Shaw is waiting to hear back from Wenzel Landscaping in regards to a start date to 
repair the cracks in the Steele parking lot.   

 Complications have arisen concerning the installation of electricity at the Horseheads 
pavilion.  Mr. Fred Fitch, an electrical inspector, has been consulted.  Options are being 
evaluated. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 5:45pm.  

The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, 
June 1, 2022 at 5:30pm in the auditorium of the Steele Memorial Library and via Zoom. 

 
 









Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age

Adult Non-Fiction 1938 7.38% 1,896 7.42% 2,255 7.59% 2272 7.51% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 8,361 7.48% 21431 7.25% 15338 5.92%

Adult Fiction 5095 19.41% 4,860 19.01% 5,666 19.08% 5813 19.22% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 21,434 19.18% 64477 21.80% 44049 17.01%

Juv NF 1389 5.29% 1,387 5.43% 1,624 5.47% 1700 5.62% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 6,100 5.46% 14921 5.04% 10002 3.86%

Juv Fic 5639 21.48% 5,708 22.33% 6,550 22.05% 6311 20.87% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 24,208 21.66% 60592 20.48% 39831 15.38%

AV 4692 17.87% 4,675 18.29% 5,647 19.01% 5645 18.67% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 20,659 18.49% 48858 16.52% 45558 17.59%

Periodicals 114 0.43% 184 0.72% 134 0.45% 173 0.57% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 605 0.54% 1553 0.53% 959 0.37%

Other 338 1.29% 414 1.62% 435 1.46% 365 1.21% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 1,552 1.39% 4018 1.36% 1868 0.72%

Public Pcs 621 2.37% 548 2.14% 750 2.53% 744 2.46% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 2,663 2.38% 6489 2.19% 4491 1.73%

Wireless 1238 4.72% 1,264 4.95% 1,765 5.94% 2610 8.63% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 6,877 6.15% 14625 4.94% 18284 7.06%

Down Audio 1601 6.10% 1,494 5.85% 1,718 5.78% 1762 5.83% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 6,575 5.88% 19934 6.74% 17359 6.70%

Down Ebooks 2924 11.14% 2,674 10.46% 2,733 9.20% 2451 8.11% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 10,782 9.65% 33242 11.24% 35431 13.68%

Down Music 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0.00% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 17809 6.88%

Down Video 72 0.27% 59 0.23% 43 0.14% 28 0.09% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 202 0.18% 976 0.33% 3660 1.41%

Down Mags 594 2.26% 396 1.55% 381 1.28% 366 1.21% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 1,737 1.55% 4687 1.58% 4318 1.67%

Total 26,255 25,559 29,701 30,240 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 111,755 295803 258,957

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 2022 20202021



 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

To: CCLD Board of Trustees  
 
From: Ronald W. Shaw, Director 
 
Date: May 16, 2022 
 
Subject: Approval of Personnel Actions  
 
 
Promotions: 
 
Change FT/PT Status: 
N/A 
 
Retirement: 
N/A 
 
End of Probationary Period- Permanent Appointment: 
N/A 
 
New Hires: 
N/A 
 
Resignations: 
N/A 
 
Terminations: 
N/A 
 
Leave: 
N/A 
 
Step Increases: 
Jeffrey Mathews- F/T Clerk to Step 6 
Samantha Decker- P/T Library Page to Step 3 
Chris Russo- PT Library Clerk to Step 10 (10 year anniversary) 

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/

	Agenda 2022-05
	Document 2022-25
	Document 2022-26
	Document 2022-27b
	Document 2022-28
	Document 2022-29
	Document 2022-30
	unpaid bills detail for May board meeting
	Circ by Month Apr 2022
	Appendix C Personnel Actions May

